

Government of Western Australia Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety

How to navigate and use the hazard registers for fatalities, serious injury and other serious incident investigations in Western Australian mining – guide

May 2018

1 Adelaide Terrace, East Perth WA 6004 Postal address: Mineral House, 100 Plain Street, East Perth WA 6004 Telephone: 1800 SAFE MINE (1800 7233 6463) MinesSafety@dmirs.wa.gov.au www.dmirs.wa.gov.au

Table of contents

Introduction	3
Hazard register structure	4
Hazard register tabs	4
Home tab	4
Incidents 20xx – year of update tab	4
Occupation groups & hazard categories tab	5
Occupation group tabs	6
Hazard category tabs	6
Data in the hazard registers	7
Hazard register data set details	7
Occupation group descriptions	8
Hazard category descriptions	9
Using the data	11
How to use the hazard register	12
Step 1: Hazard identification	12
Resources	
Step 2: Development of safe systems of work	12
Resources	
Step 3: Training	
Resources	
Step 4: Supervision	
Resources	
Step 5: Individual awareness	14
Resources	14

Introduction

Unfortunately, fatalities, serious injuries and incidents continue happening in the Western Australian mining industry.

The following hazard registers have been created for use by mining operations, using information from completed Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety (DMIRS) investigations:

- Hazard register for Western Australian mining fatalities (Fatalities register). This register also includes precautions detailed in the Coroner's findings.
- Hazard register for serious injury or other serious incident investigations in Western Australian mining (Serious injury and incidents register).

The analysis of accidents and incidents presented in the register will be updated annually.

The hazard registers enable sites to:

- identify hazards with the potential to cause fatalities or serious injuries
- demonstrate how hazards can impact different occupation groups
- identify the activities and tasks being undertaken at the time a fatality, serious injury or other serious incident occurred
- identify potential precautions or preventative measures.

Its use should assist in the prevention of similar incidents by raising awareness of the circumstances and hazards associated with these incidents, as well as identifying precautions or preventative measures that could avert an incident.

Mining operations should use the hazard registers to identify and review hazards relevant to their site that are associated with fatalities, serious injury or other serious incidents in Western Australia. This information can then be used in site-specific hazard registers and incorporated into the site's safe systems of work. This process can assist management to focus on these hazards and how to address them.

Workers can also consult the hazard registers to raise individual awareness around hazard identification, incidents associated with their occupation, and tasks they may undertake that potentially expose them to risk.

Note: The hazard registers are not intended to be the sole source of information for developing site-specific hazard registers.

Hazard register structure

Hazard register tabs

Each hazard register consists of a number of tabs in an Excel spreadsheet. The tabs are:

Defeile	Number	of tabs		
Details	Fatalities register	Serious injury and incidents register		
Home	1	1		
Incidents 20xx – year of update	1	1		
Occupation groups & hazard categories	1	1		
Occupation group	10	11		
Hazard category	20	17		

Home tab

The *Home* page details the aims of the hazard register and how it can be used by the Western Australian mining industry – shown below for the Fatalities register.

1	A
1	Hazard register for all Western Australian mining fatalities from January 2000 to December 2016
	This hazard register presents the findings from the Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety's investigations into 66 fatal mining accidents in the Western Australian mining industry over the period January 2000 to December
	2016. The investigation reports were analysed to identify:
	 the occupation of the person and the activity, specific task and location of the incident
	 the root cause of the incident and the precautions or preventative measures that had the potential to avert the incident
	details of the hazard
	equipment or infrastructure involved.
	Additionally, the Coroner's findings were also considered to assist in the identification of suitable precautions and preventative measures.
	This data should be used by employers and workers to assist in the development of safe work practices on mining operations. All responsible persons should carefully evaluate their safety systems and risk management processes to ensure
	that hazards with the potential to cause fatal accidents are highlighted in training and supervision documents. Precautions and critical controls should then be built into the systems of work.
	Details on all of the fatalities can be found in the Fatalities 2000 – 2016 tab. This data has been further grouped, based on occupation of the person and hazard type, for ease of reference. Links to this data can be accessed through the
	Occupation groups & hazard categories tab.
2	For more information on how to use the hazard register please refer to How to navigate and use the Hazard register for Western Australian mining fatalities – guide .
	Copyright The Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety (DMIRS) supports and encoursees reuse of its information (including data), and endorses use of the Australian Governments Open Access and Licensing Framework (AusGOAL).
	ine uepartment of Mines, industry Regulation and Safety (UMINS) supports and encourages reuse of its information (including data), and endorses use of the Australian Governments Upen Access and Licensing framework (Aust-OAL).
	This material is licensed under Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 licence. We request that you observe and retain any copyright or related notices that may accompany this material as part of attribution. This is a requirement of Creative Commons Licences.
	Please give attribution to Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety, 2017.
3	BY
	For resources, information or clarification, please contact or visit:
5	RSDComms@dmirs.wa.gov.au
6	www.dmirs.wa.gov.au/ResourcesSafety
7	
8	
9	
7 8 9 10 11	
12 13	
13	🔹 > Home Fatalities 2000 – 2016 Occupation groups & hazard cat Fitter Operator – underground Operator – surface Driver – surface Mana 💮 : 4
	Tome Residence Actor Occupation groups a nazara car inter Operator - underground Operator - surface Driver - surface Mahai (*) : 1

Incidents 20xx - year of update tab

The *Fatalities 2000 – year of update* tab (Fatalities register) contains the analysis of information gathered from DMIRS investigations into fatal mining accidents from 1 January 2000 to the latest annual update. The Coroner's findings were also considered to assist in the identification of suitable precautions and preventative measures.

The Serious injury & inc 2011 – year of update tab (Serious injury and incident register) contains the analysis of information gathered from DMIRS investigations into mining accidents resulting in serious injury or other serious incident investigations from 1 January 2011 to the latest annual update.

Data sets include:

- the occupation of the person and the activity, specific task and location of the incident
- the root cause of the incident and the precautions or preventative measures that had the potential to avert the incident
- details of the hazard
- the equipment or infrastructure involved.

For more information on these columns see Hazard register data set details.

For each incident, a specific occupation group and hazard category have been assigned (first two columns) – shown below for the Fatalities register.

	Hazard register for all Vestern Australian mining fatalities from January 2000 to December 2016													
						-	-		-	LBCSCIER				
Occupation group	Hazard cataqury	t	ato of incido	Datails of baxard	Occupation at time of incident	Activity	Tark	Incident	Injury auteams	(undergra und ar	Ar	Equipment ur infrartructure	Procautius ur provostativo moaruro(r)	Rolatod minorsafoty a
Operator-surface	Fallfram hoight	1	05/04/2000	Fallfram hoight	Mubile crone operator	Warking an crane de ck	Standing un deck of crane, moving wooden blocks.	Grane up or at ur last his balance and fall.	Fatal – fracturad a alsir	Surface	On crano dock at upon pit lay daun area	Mabilo crono	Wark fram graund where practicable.	
											-			
Operatur - undergraund	Yehicle run away	2	1670572000	Vehicle - runaway	Load-haul-dump (LHD) operator	Alighted from LHD unit in ore drive	Dirmounted from LHD unit, walked forward and greeted a blast-srewmember.	LHD unit rolled forward trapping the operator against the sharaing unit.	Fatal - crurh injury	Undorgraund	Oro drivo	LHD unit	Runaway procautianr - Sotpark brako and chack uhool.	
Driver-surface	Vehicle over edge	3	26/05/2000	Vehicle aver edge	Haultruck driver	Dumpingareantazurfoce	Reversinghaultruck to tip head.			Surface	Stuckpile tip he od	Haultruck	1.Bund.	
						ztmekpilo			injurior				2. Sogragatadstækkpila fingars. 3. Inspact før undar ovtadgar.	
Electricion	Inruth	4	2670672000	Fillbarricado rupturo	Electricion	Ela-strical Lank canductad undargraund	Normal work activities (in line of mine tailing shary insuch).	Afill berricede ruptured cowing azburry in ruch.	Fatal - arphyxiatian/multipl e injurier	Undorgraund	Centralzo ctianztapo and undoremund uarkplace	Sandfill bulkhood	1. Compliance with fillstandardr. 2. Training and manituring in backfill process.	MSE No. 195: Patential hazar azzeciated uith mine fill MSE No. 1954: Safety izzanz azzeciated uith hydraulich ach
Operator-	Inrarh	5	26/06/2000	Fillbarricade rupture	Truck driver	Drivingtruckunderground	Normal work activities (in line of	A fill berricode ruptured cowing	Fatal-	Underground	Control cotion stope and	Sandfill bulkhead	1. Compliance with fillet and orde.	MSB No. 155: Patential Lazar
underground							mine tailings sherry insuch).	arburry in ruch.	arphysiotian/multipl		undorgraund warkplace	l .	2. Training and manitaring in backfill	arreciated with mine fill
									o injurier				præceer.	MSB No. 654: Safety izzuez azzociated with hydraulic back
Operator-	Inrwh	•	26/06/2000	Fillbarricade rupture	Drill jumba aporatar	Operating jumbs underground	Normal work activities (in line of			Undergraund		Sandfill bulkhood	1. Compliance with fillstander dr.	MSB No. 055: Patential houard
undorgraund							mine tailinge elvery ineach).	azhrry ioruzh.	arphyxiotianfmultipl e injurier		undorersund usrkplaca		2. Training and manituring in backfill prucess.	azzaciated uithmine fill MSB No. 054: Safety izzuez azzaciated withhydraulich acl
Operator-	Undergraundrackfall	7	02/09/2000	Rockfall-zeirmic	Drill jumba aperatar	Rehabilitation of grounds upport	Roversing jumba tawardra crass	Extensive mack fell coured by a	Fatel - crushinjury	Undergraund	Crazz-cut ara-a	Graundzuppart	1. Support durige.	
undorground				ovent		aftorsoirmicovent	cut where ground war not adequately supported.	zoirmicovent.					2. Warkzoguonee. 3. Alweyz wark underzupparted graund.	
Manoqors and supervisars	Naturalavont	*	14/01/2001	Lightning	Undergrøund monoger	Canductinginzpoctian at zurfacowator calloctian area	Standing botwoon two water callection pandr during thundary wo other canditians.	Struckby lightning.	Fatal - lightning injuriar	Surface	Standing next to water colloction cell located near tellingr dam. Flat, open location.	NAA (Nate:lightning dataction advicer could be conridered or en option)	1. Stay in rubber tyred vehicle. 2. Seekshelter inside buildings. 3. Avnid upen ground. 4. Dunatshelter under trees	MSB Nn. 160: Liahtnin artrikee manaaina the ricke
Fitter	Vehicle rallover	'	20/03/2001	Integrated tool carrier (IT) roll over - unetable forklift attachment lood	Fixedplantfitter	Driving an IT with a fark attachmont frame	Maving/carrying a crane jib (unrtable land an fark lift attachment).	If ralled anta iteraids. The fitter who was driving the IT was cruched between the cab and the ground.	Fatal - multiple injurier	Surface	Surface rood at mine	IT fitted with fark attachment frame	1. Wearzeat-belt. 2. Furklift attachment framer tu carry currectlyzecured, ztable luadr.	
Electrician	Electrical contact	- 10	26/03/2001	"Live" electrical	Electrical unrker	Suitchbaardupqrade	Carrying out electrical work for	Electrical unrker's forehead	Fatal-electrocution	Surface	Mainzuitchbaardarea,	Suitchboard ("live"	1. Fallou work procedure.	
				cantactr			switchboord up-grade.	mode cantact with expared "live" incoming phase links.			expared "live" phare link incurning fixed blode cantoctr	pharelinkincoming contectr)	2. Insulation barrier/cover over live phase link contacts. 3. Irolate enversagely vertre an.	
Operator-zurface	Yehisle weer edge	11	10/05/2001	Vehiale uver edge – rock wedge failure	Bulldazor aporetar	Operating abulldaner	Purking diet adjacent to the adge of pituall.	Buildanar went mor the edge, dawn arill (120 vertical motror). The danar aperator was thrown from the call of the buildanar.		Sutoco	Section of pit well in the form of a "knob"	Bulldano7	1. Inspect for fractured ground.	MSB No. 952: Donerzafetzina sutmoratione MSB No. 953: Death of doner d conmistinding
Manoqorz and zuporvizarz	Maintonance pracoduro deficiency	12	27/03/2001	Mochinomochanirm – cought botuson	Superviror	Inspecting a limestane black- making machine tare stify fault	Entering the mechine operating mechanism (mechine warnat fully isolated).	The supervisor case cought in the internal mechanism of the block- making machine.	Fatal – crurk injury	Surface	In the mochanism of a mosthine durigned to form and place reconstituted linertone blacks	Limertane black- making machine	1. Fallou arigin al aquipmont men uf acturar's antry/maintan anco procedures. 2. Irolato fully prior to antoring quarded area to operating machenizm.	
Fitter	Fallfram hoight	8	07/11/2001	Fallfram hoight	Fitter	Loading an elevating work platform (EMP) onto a flat bad trailer	Moving EVIP onto trailor. Operating EVIP controls from the EVIP's work barket (no spotter or backstop).	Trailer tipped and EWP slid off the end of the trailer. The fitter user through from the work barket.	Fatal – he ad injurier	Surface	Incide EWP wurk barket. EWP un tup of troller	Eloveting work platform (EWP)	1. Budy harness for elevated work. 2. Looding procedure to include we of backstop and spatter. 3. Risk assessment for task.	SIRNa, 112: Landinezervice ve antatrailer
Oporatur - underground	Electrical cantact	14	30/05/2002	"Livo" electrical cantacta	Drill jumba aporatar	Installation of a pumping line from the surface, to the main decline at the mine	Tarelacete the pump storter ta resolutions (pump storter bax kept trippin quot).	Drill jumba apor star'r hond tauched the live incaming cabler inride the starter bass. He war standing in water et the time.	Fatal - electrocution	Undergraund	Electrical installation. Hand insidestature box touching live in coming cobles	Elo atricalstartor bux	1. Only ale strictions to work on electrical switch go as. 2. All ale strict panels to be backed and key accuss for electricians only.	SIR Na. 117: Under araundeles equiament - fotal assident

Occupation groups & hazard categories tab

The Occupation groups & hazard categories tab is a navigation page that lists the occupation groups and hazard categories recognised during the analysis of the incident data. Each occupation group or hazard category is a hyperlink taking the user to the associated page in the register.

The total number of incidents for each occupation group and hazard category is included to aid in the identification of hazards that could result in fatalities or serious injury, and the occupation groups exposed to these hazards – illustrated below for the Fatalities register.

	A	В	с	D	E	F	G
1		Hazard register for all	Western A	Australian m	nining fatalities from January 2000) to December 2016	
Ì							
2							
3	Occupation group	Number of fatalities			Hazai	rd category	Number of fatalities
4	Fitter	15			Fall from height		11
5	Operator – underground	13			Maintenance procedure deficiency		8
6	Operator – surface	7			Underground rockfall		5
7	Driver – surface	7			Vehicle collision		5
8	Managers and supervisors	6			Vehicle over edge		4
9	Drillers and blasters	5			Vehicle runaway		4
0	Electrician	5			Vehicle rollover		3
1	Service worker	3			Tyres		3
2	Trades	3			Machinery movement – crush	NOTE: This category is for moving machinery components NOT mobile equipment.	4
3	Professional and technical	2			Electrical contact		3
4	Total = 10	66			Inrush		3
5					Open pit – wall failure or subsidence		2
6					Heat exhaustion		2
7					Suspended load		2
8					Falling equipment		2
9					High pressure equipment		1
0					Engineering design		1
1					Explosions and fires		1
22					Explosives		1
23					Natural event	e.g. lightning	1
24					Total = 20		66
5							
6							
7							
8							
9							
30							
1							
-							
	Home Fatalities 2000 – 2016	Occupation groups & hazard	cat Fitter	Operator – u	inderground Operator – surface Driv	er – surface Mana <mark>:</mark> 🕀 🗄 📢	

Occupation group tabs

An occupation group tab contains the details of all incidents that occurred within a particular occupation grouping (e.g. fitter, driver – surface).

This data filtering helps determine which:

- hazards are associated with incidents investigated for particular occupations
- high-risk tasks form part of some work activities
- precautions or preventative measures that might have prevented the incident.

Find out more about how the occupation groups are derived in Occupation group descriptions.

Hazard category tabs

Each hazard category tab provides details of the tasks and activities that can expose workers to a particular type of hazard (e.g. fall from height). Understanding the hazards associated with particular tasks and activities can help to identify adequate controls to be implemented.

Please note that although incidents often involve numerous hazards, the hazard category is determined by the root cause of the particular incident.

Find out more about how the hazard categories are derived in *Hazard category descriptions*.

Data in the hazard registers

As well as using the information from DMIRS investigations and the Coroner's findings (for fatal accidents), construction of the hazard registers also built upon the techniques and learnings from the <u>Fatal accidents in the Western Australian mining industry 2000-2012: what lessons can we learn? – report and Analysis of serious injury data in the Western Australian mining industry, July-December 2013: what lessons can we learn? – report.</u>

The analysis of incidents is found in the *Incidents 20xx – year of update* tab. Each incident has been assigned an occupation group and hazard category. The data has then been filtered using these groups and categories in the subsequent tabs to assist the user in applying the learnings to their own site.

Hazard register data set details

The details of each data set are described in the table below.

Hazard register header	Details
Occupation group	A group of workers categorised by common occupations. For example, the occupation group <i>Fitter</i> includes mechanical, diesel and heavy duty fitters as well as apprentice fitters.
	Found only on the <i>Incidents 20xx – year of update</i> tab, <i>Occupation group</i> has been used to filter the data. The results are found in subsequent tabs in the hazard register. See <u>Occupation group descriptions</u> for more information.
Hazard category	Hazards with similar properties and classification. For example, the hazard category <i>Electrical contact</i> includes incidents where a body part or tool came into contact with a live component in an electrical circuit.
	Found only on the <i>Incidents 20xx – year of update</i> tab, <i>Hazard category</i> has been used to filter the data. The results are found in subsequent tabs in the hazard register. See <u>Hazard category descriptions</u> for more information.
Identity number	Each incident is assigned a unique identification number to assist with tracking in the hazard register.
Date of incident	Date of the incident. Incidents are chronologically ordered in the register from the year 2000 (Fatalities register) and 2011 (Serious injury and incidents register) onwards.
Details of hazard	Specific details of the hazard category. For example, Hazard category: Machinery movement – crush. Details of hazard: EWP movement underground – crush.
Occupation at time of incident	The occupation as determined by job the worker was undertaking at the time of the incident. For example, although a qualified driller, an individual was given the occupation of an offsider as he was working as an offsider on another rig at the time of the incident.
	The occupation at the time of incident is also used when assigning the occupation grouping to an incident.
Activity	The type of work being undertaken.

Hazard register header	Details
Task	The task being undertaken at the time of the incident.
Incident	Details of the incident or event; how the fatal injury or serious injury or other serious incident occurred.
Injury outcome	Nature of injury.
Location (underground or surface)	The working environment where the incident occurred.
Area	Specific location of the incident.
Equipment or infrastructure	Anything involved in the incident, such as a piece of equipment, device or environmental factor.
Precaution or preventative measure(s)	Controls that could have been implemented to potentially mitigate the incident.
	Note: These are not preventative controls and do not replace the need for a site to conduct a risk assessment.
Related mines safety alerts	Where available, links to related significant incident reports (SIRs) or mines safety bulletin (MSBs) are provided for reference. These mining safety alerts contain additional detail about the fatal accident.
	Note: Information provided in the hazard register has been derived from the concluding findings of investigations. Whereas information in safety alerts may be based on preliminary findings.
	SIRs outline the details of a single incident where MSBs may deal with multiple related incidents, trends or inspectorate concerns.

Occupation group descriptions

Occupation groups were first developed and used in the <u>Analysis of serious injury data in the</u> <u>Western Australian mining industry</u>, <u>July-December 2013</u>: what lessons can we learn? – report. The groups were established using the internal coding system on DMIRS' Safety Regulation System (SRS). Grouping similar occupation types allowed for a clearer pattern of hazard exposure and causation factors to be seen in the analysis of serious injury data.

This approach has been carried through to the hazard registers. Not all of the 12 occupation groups recognised in the serious injury report, may have been referenced in each hazard register as some occupation groups may not have been involved in incidents during the period of analysis. The occupation groups were assembled using the SRS coding with consideration for the data set *Occupation at the time of the incident*.

Occupation group	Examples of occupations in group
Fitter	Fitter, fitter's apprentice, boilermaker, welder
Operator – underground	Underground worker and those who operate equipment underground. For example, a miner, nipper, jumbo operator, driller (e.g. long hole, diamond), driller's offsider, load-haul- dump operator, ground support crew, mobile processing unit operator, truck driver, agitator driver.

Occupation group	Examples of occupations in group
Operator – surface	Worker on the surface and those who operate equipment on the surface. For example, a prospector and mobile plant operators such as loader, bulldozer and scraper operators, miner and mobile crane operator.
Driver – surface	Worker on the surface who is associated with driving activities. For example, locomotive driver, crane driver, truck driver (e.g. haul trucks, water trucks, service trucks, road trains).
Managers and supervisors	Underground manager, foreman, shift boss, supervisor, other managers and caretaker.
Drillers and blasters	Worker associated with drilling and blasting activities on the surface and underground. For example, shotfirer, blast crew, blast hole driller, offsider, charge-up operator.
Electrician	Electrician and apprentice, electrical worker, automotive electrician, electrical instrument technician.
Service worker	Worker who assists in maintaining equipment and infrastructure. For example, serviceman, belt splicer, descaler operator.
Trades	Rigger, scaffolder.
Professional and technical	Engineer, metallurgist, surveyor, geologist, field assistant.
Process worker	Worker associated with activities on a processing plant. For example process operator, bagging plant operator, precipitation process operator, furnace operator.
Not occupation specific	Refers to situations where there is more than one occupation group in the area at the time of the incident that had the potential to be affected

Hazard category descriptions

Although incidents often involve multiple hazards, the data set *Hazard category* reflects the root cause of the particular incident. The classifications referenced in the registers are derived from both the fatal accidents and serious injury reports, and the additional analysis of incidents included in the hazard registers.

Hazard category	Description of the hazard category
Fall from height	A fall or drop from height, including edges, holes and gaps.
Maintenance procedure deficiency	Departure from original equipment manufacturer (OEM) or site procedure, or an inadequate site procedure for completing maintenance tasks.
Underground rockfall	Any rock that falls from an underground working such as excavation, drive or stope.
Vehicle collision	When a vehicle collides with another vehicle or object. Can involve both light vehicles (LV) and heavy vehicles (HV).

Hazard category	Description of the hazard category
Vehicle over edge	Any mobile equipment working close to an edge (e.g. tailings storage facility, ramp, stockpile, drainage channel) that goes over.
Vehicle runaway	A vehicle that 'runs away' on a downward gradient and cannot be stopped with the vehicle's braking system. Includes situations where the vehicle may have moved from a parked position.
Vehicle rollover	Incident where a vehicle tips onto its side or roof.
Tyres	The release of stored potential energy when handling tyres. Caused by tyres falling onto people or the uncontrolled release of compressed air during tyre inflation.
Machinery movement – crush	Movement of machinery components on mobile and fixed equipment, such as remotely controlled equipment, conveyor belts and haul truck trays. <i>Note: For moving machinery components, <u>not</u> the</i>
	movement of mobile equipment.
Electrical contact	When a body part or tool comes into contact with a live component in an electrical circuit. This can include arc flash and electrocution incidents.
Inrush	Uncontrolled movement of fluid or fluidised material (e.g. water, tailings, mud) into mine workings.
Open pit – wall failure or subsidence	Ground failure in an open pit, causing earth movement that results in subsidence or wall failure.
Heat exhaustion	Exposure to a hot environment that results in the body being unable to cool itself to maintain a healthy temperature.
Suspended load	Sudden movement of a suspended load due to component failure or inadequately secured load, striking a worker in the vicinity.
Falling equipment	Equipment, material and tools that can fall onto or strike a worker.
High pressure equipment	Release of stored energy, such as uncontrolled release of high pressured gas or hydraulic fluid.
Engineering design	Engineering design of plant, equipment or workplaces resulting in an unsafe working environment.
Explosions and fires	Substances in the environment that can cause fires and explosions. Explosive atmospheres can be caused by flammable gases, mists, vapours or combustible dusts.
Explosives	Detonation of an explosive charge.
Natural event	Incident contributed to by a natural event (e.g. intense storm front, cyclonic events, bush fires, flooding).

Hazard category	Description of the hazard category
Chemical burns	Caused when a body part comes into contact with a corrrrosive substance. For example caustic soda, acid slurry, anhydrous ammonia (NH ₃).
Exposure	Exposure to substances or emissions that could result in illness. For example radiation, asbestos (ACM).

Using the data

The hazard registers' format allows filtering and sorting of information. All details of incidents can be viewed in the *Incidents 20xx – year of update* tab.

Data filtered by occupation group and hazard category are also provided and can be navigated to through the *Occupation groups & hazard categories* tab.

Users can interrogate and filter the data themselves by looking at aspects that may be relevant to their site, such as location (underground or surface), equipment or infrastructure, area or work activity or task.

How to use the hazard register

There are five key steps to using the hazard register to improve hazard awareness and risk management.

Step 1: Hazard identification

The first step in risk management is to identify hazards in the workplace. There should be a focus on hazards that have the potential to cause serious harm (fatal, serious or near-misses) and adversely affect the health and safety of workers.

Hazards can be identified through one or more of the following activities:

- routine hazard and housekeeping inspections and audit activities
- study of information provided by manufacturers and suppliers of equipment and substances
- investigation of incidents and accidents
- accessing learnings from safety alerts, including the DMIRS' significant incident reports and safety bulletins
- as part of the change management process for introducing new equipment or processes, and changes to existing equipment or processes
- as part of the review process for existing plans and procedures.

Resources

Hazard identification - what to look for (2008)

How are hazards identified?

Improving hazard awareness - lifting the game (2014)

Step 2: Development of safe systems of work

Once the first step, hazard identification, has been completed, it is important that this process is formally and appropriately documented. Safe methods and/or controls should be defined in this documentation to eliminate or reduce the risk as low as reasonably practicable.

The hazard registers present the precautions or preventative measures that could have been implemented to mitigate the incident. These precautions or measures were not in place at the time of the incident; however, if they had been, the incident might have been avoided or the severity of injuries reduced.

The precautions and measures do not replace the need for a site to conduct a risk assessment. Operations can review the hazard registers, identifying incidents relevant to their site. Preventative controls can be identified and detailed in the site's policies and procedures.

The site's hazard register should serve as a reference to assist in the development of job safety analyses (JSAs) or other task-based risk assessments.

The <u>Safety and Health Risk Management – guideline</u> provides an understanding of the process to be followed when carrying out risk management in accordance with the *Mines Safety and Inspection Act 1994* and Mines Safety and Inspection Regulations 1995.

Resources

What is a job safety analysis?

How is a job safety analysis (JSA) developed?

Step 3: Training

Mining operations are required to have safe systems of work so workers can safely carry out activities. The provision of information, instruction, training and supervision is an essential component of any risk management strategy. People must be competent in the tasks they are assigned, and have the demonstrated knowledge and skills necessary to perform the task safely. Competency is gained through a combination of training and experience. Training must be provided to all workers in accordance with the site policies and procedures.

Workers should be aware of the hazards their individual occupation group is exposed to, the nature of each hazard, the activities and tasks that expose them to hazards and the precautions implemented.

The site's hazard register should be easily accessible to all workers, for reference when completing a task detailed in the register.

Training may be provided through a variety of mechanisms, including:

- classroom teaching
- online training
- on-the-job training
- simulation
- open learning techniques
- toolbox talks and other formal information sessions.

Resources

What is the importance of training, information and instruction?

What should be considered for a training management system?

What should be considered for effective inductions?

Step 4: Supervision

Supervision is a crucial safety function applicable across all levels of an organisation. It complements the provision of information, instruction and training, and influences how well organisations achieve the safety and health requirements of the *Mines Safety and Inspection Act 1994* and the associated Mines Safety and Inspection Regulations 1995.

Effective supervision sets and maintains high standards of performance and the physical aspects of the work environment, and is critical to achieving and maintaining the desired safety culture.

Resources

What should be considered for effective safety and health supervision

Effective safety and health supervision in Western Australian mining operations - guideline

Frequently asked questions on management and supervision at mining operations – information sheet

Step 5: Individual awareness

Individual safety awareness is the last line of defence for a worker completing a task. It is important for each individual to have an awareness of the hazards they might be exposed to and what is 'unsafe'. Reviewing the site's hazard register is invaluable in raising individual awareness of hazards.

Individual awareness can also be increased through reviewing publications on the DMIRS website. This includes toolbox presentations, data analysis reports and hazard awareness videos. Some operations also offer tools to raising awareness using awareness training, presentations, news alerts or updates and information posters around site.

To stay up-to-date with safety news, subscribe to the DMIRS email alert service to receive the latest news about publications, safety alerts, events and safety reform progress.

Subscribe to updates

Resources

How can awareness training improve competency?